

# Harlem Village Academy East Charter School

# 2017-18 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT

Submitted to the SUNY Charter Schools Institute on:

November 6, 2018

By Robert Ollwerther

35 West 124th Street, New York, NY 10027

(646) 812-9200

# **CONTENTS**

BOARD OF TRUSTEES	3
HIGH SCHOOL COHORTS	4
GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION	6
GOAL 2: COLLEGE PREPARATION	12
GOAL 3: ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS	17
HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS	25
GOAL 4: MATHEMATICS	33
HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS	41
GOAL 5: SCIENCE	49
HIGH SCHOOL SCIENCE	52
GOAL 6: SOCIAL STUDIES	55
GOAL 7: ESSA	60

# **BOARD OF TRUSTEES**

Robert Ollwerther, Chief Operating Officer, prepared this 2017-18 Accountability Progress Report on behalf of the school's board of trustees:

Trustee's Name	Board Position		
David Zwiebel	Chair		
Daniel Pianko	Treasurer		
Deborah Kenny	Secretary		
Andrew August	Member		
Judith Turner Hamerschlag	Member		

Deborah Kenny has served as the Executive Director since 2005.

The mission of Harlem Village Academy East is to prepare students of fine character to graduate from college and make a positive contribution to society. In order to accomplish this mission, we have established clear, measurable goals, which are outlined in this document. The school leadership and faculty continually strive to maintain our community's focus on achieving these goals. Harlem Village Academy East opened in the fall of 2005 with its first class of fifth graders. The school is divided into three academies that collectively serve approximately 706 students in grades Kindergarten through twelfth.

	School Enrollment by Grade Level and School Year													
School			Eleme	entary				Middle			Hi	gh		Total
Year	K	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	TOLAI
2013-14	134	110	-	-	-	73	61	76	75	56	45	35	33	698
2014-15	121	105	106	1	1	73	65	56	71	72	55	44	33	801
2015-16	120	106	98	82	1	71	64	61	50	56	70	54	44	876
2016-17	110	87	96	76	69	70	49	51	52	29	53	60	49	851
2017-18	67	85	61	65	50	57	62	39	46	41	29	46	58	706

#### HIGH SCHOOL COHORTS

#### **ACCOUNTABILITY COHORT**

The state's Accountability Cohort consists specifically of students who are in their fourth year of high school after entering the 9<sup>th</sup> grade. For example, the 2014 state Accountability Cohort consists of students who entered the 9<sup>th</sup> grade anywhere in the 2014-15 school year, were enrolled in the school on the state's annual enrollment-determination day (i.e., BEDS day) in the 2017-18 school year, and either remained in the school for the rest of the year or left for an acceptable reason. (See New York State Education Department's SIRS Manual for more details about cohort eligibility: <a href="http://www.p12.nysed.gov/irs/sirs/ht">http://www.p12.nysed.gov/irs/sirs/ht</a>)

The following table indicates the number of students in the Accountability Cohorts who are in their fourth year of high school anywhere and were enrolled at the school on BEDS Day in October and remained in the school until June 30<sup>th</sup> of that year.

Fourth-Year High School Accountability Cohorts								
Fourth Year Cohort	Year Entered 9 <sup>th</sup> Grade Anywhere	Cohort Designation	Number of Students Enrolled on BEDS Day in October of the Cohort's Fourth Year	Number Leaving During the School Year	Number in Accountability Cohort as of June 30th			
2015-16	2012-13	2012	42	2	40			
2016-17	2013-14	2013	49	0	49			
2017-18	2014-15	2014	59	1	58			

#### TOTAL COHORT FOR GRADUATION

Students are also included in the Total Cohort for Graduation (referred to as the Graduation Cohort, Total Graduation Cohort, or Total Cohort interchangeably throughout this report) based on the year they first enter the 9<sup>th</sup> grade. Students enrolled for <u>at least one day in the school</u> after entering the 9<sup>th</sup> grade are part of the school's Graduation Cohort. The school may remove students from the Graduation Cohort if the school has discharged those students for an acceptable reason listed in the SIRS manual, including the following: if they transfer to another public or private diploma-granting program with documentation, transfer to home schooling by a parent or guardian, transfer to another district or school, transfer by court order, leave the U.S., or are deceased.

	Fourth Year Total Cohort for Graduation						
Fourth Year Cohort	Year Entered 9 <sup>th</sup> Grade Anywhere	Cohort Designation	Number of Students Enrolled on June 30 <sup>th</sup> of the Cohort's Fourth Year (a)	Number of Students No Longer at the School Who Had Been Enrolled for at Least One Day Prior to Leaving the School and Who Were Not Discharged for an Acceptable Reason (b)	Total Graduation Cohort (a) + (b)		
2015-16	2012-13	2012	40	0	40		
2016-17	2013-14	2013	49	3	52		
2017-18	2014-15	2014	58	0	58		

Fifth Year Total Cohort for Graduation						
Fifth Year Cohort	Year Entered 9 <sup>th</sup> Grade Anywhere	Cohort Designation	Number of Students Enrolled on June 30 <sup>th</sup> of the Cohort's Fifth Year (a)	Number of Students No Longer at the School Who Had Been Enrolled for at Least One Day Prior to Leaving the School and Who Were <u>Not</u> Discharged for an Acceptable Reason (b)	Total Graduation Cohort (a) + (b)	
2015-16	2011-12	2011	2	0	2	
2016-17	2012-13	2012	0	0	0	
2017-18	2013-14	2013	0	0	0	

### **GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION**

#### **GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION**

Students will graduate from high school.

#### **Goal 1: Leading Indicator**

Each year, 75 percent of students in first and second year high school Total Graduation Cohorts will earn at least ten credits (if 44 needed for graduation) or five credits (if 22 needed for graduation).

#### **METHOD**

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of the high school cohort and examines students' progress toward graduation based on annual credit accumulation. The measure requires that, based on the school's promotion requirements, 75 percent of the first and second year high school Total Graduation Cohorts will earn the required number of credits.

In order to graduate, students must successfully complete at least 22 credits as listed below:

4 English credits	3 Math credits	1 Art credit
4 Social Studies credits	1 World Language credit	0.5 Health Education credits
3 Science credits	2 Physical Education credits	3.5 Elective credits

Harlem Village Academy East strongly encourages students to enroll in English, History, Math, and Science courses for all four years of high school, and in World Language courses for three years. Students are considered to be promoted to the next grade level as long as they remain on track to graduate from high school in four years.

10th: In order to be considered a sophomore, students must successfully complete at least 5 credits. 11th: In order to be considered a junior, students must successfully complete at least 10 credits. 12th: In order to be considered a senior, students must successfully complete at least 15 credits.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below displays the percent of students in each Accountability Cohort who remain on track to graduate within four years.

# Percent of Students in First and Second Year Cohorts Earning the Required Number of Credits in 2017-18

Cohort	Number in	Percent
Designation	Cohort	promoted
2016	26	100%
2017	41	95%

Harlem Village Academy East exceeded the measure.

#### **Goal 1: Leading Indicator**

Each year, 75 percent of students in the second year high school Total Graduation Cohort will score at or above proficient on at least three different New York State Regents exams required for graduation.

#### **METHOD**

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of high school cohorts and examines their progress towards graduation based on Regents exam passage. The measure requires that 75 percent of students in each Graduation Cohort have passed at least three Regents exams by their second year in the cohort. In August of 2018, the 2016 cohort will have completed its second year.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the percent of each cohort that passed three Regents exams by their second year in the cohort.

#### Percent of Students in their Second Year Passing Three Regents Exams by Cohort

Cohort Designation	Number in Cohort	Percent Passing Three Regents
2014	58	100%
2015	49	86%
2016	26	81%

Harlem Village Academy East exceeded the measure for the 2014 cohort. The school also exceeded the measure for the 2015 and the 2016 cohorts.

#### **Goal 1: Absolute Measures**

Each year, 75 percent of students in the fourth year high school Total Graduation Cohort and 95 percent of students in the fifth year high school Total Graduation Cohort will graduate.

#### **METHOD**

This measure examines students in two high school Graduation Cohorts: those who entered the 9<sup>th</sup> grade as members of the 2014 cohort and graduated four years later and those who entered as members of the 2013 cohort and graduated five years later. These data reflect August graduation rates. At a minimum, these students have passed five Regents exams required for high school graduation in ELA, mathematics, science, U.S. History, and Global History or met the requirements for the 4+1 pathway to graduation.<sup>1</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The state's guidance for the 4+1 graduation pathway can be found here: <a href="http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple-pathways/">http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple-pathways/</a>.

The school's graduation requirements appear in this document below the graduation goal's first measure pertaining to annual grade-by-grade promotion or credit accumulation.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The tables below show the four-year and five-year graduation rates for each cohort.

#### Percent of Students in the Total Graduation Cohort who have Graduated After Four Years

Cohort Designation	Number in Cohort	Percent Graduating
2012	42	100%
2013	49	100%
2014	58	100%

#### Percent of Students in Total Graduation Cohort Who Have Graduated After Five Years

Cohort	Number in	Percent
Designation	Cohort	Graduating
2011	33	100%
2012	42	100%
2013	49	100%

Harlem Village Academy East exceeded the measure.

#### **Goal 1: Comparative Measure**

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Graduation Cohort graduating after the completion of their fourth year will exceed that of the Total Graduation Cohort from the school district of comparison.

#### **METHOD**

The school compares the graduation rate of students completing their fourth year in the charter school's Total Graduation Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of comparison.<sup>2</sup> Given that students may take Regents exams through the summer of their fourth year, district results for the current year are generally not available at this time.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The tables below show the four-year graduation rates for each cohort for Harlem Village Academy East and Community School District 4.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Schools can retrieve district level graduation rates from the SED's Information and Reporting Services office. News releases and an Excel workbook containing these data are available from the <u>IRS Data Release webpage</u>.

# Percent of Students in the Total Graduation Cohort who Graduate in Four Years Compared to the District

Cohort	Charter	School	School	District
Designa	Number in	Percent	Number in	Percent
tion	Cohort	Graduating	Cohort	Graduating
2012	42	100%	928	83%
2013	49	100%	833	85.6%
2014	58	100%	N/A	N/A

Harlem Village Academy East met the measure for the 2012 and 2013 cohorts. School district information for the 2014 cohort is not available at this time.

#### **Goal 1: Absolute Measure**

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total Cohort pursuing an alternative graduation pathway (commonly referred to as the 4+1 pathway) will achieve a Regents equivalency score and pass an approved pathway assessment required for graduation by the end of their fourth year in the cohort.

#### **METHOD**

The New York State Board of Regents approved regulations establishing alternative pathways to graduation for all students. Students may replace one of the required Social Studies Regents exams with an approved alternative assessment. For more information about requirements and approved assessments refer to the NYSED resource online: <a href="http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple-pathways/">http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple-pathways/</a>. The school will document the names of the alternative assessments administered and success rate for students in the templates bellow.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the percent of students demonstrating success on alternative graduation pathway assessments.

#### Percentage of the 2014 Graduation Cohort Pathway Students Demonstrating Success by Exam Type

Exam	Number of Graduation Cohort Members Tested (a)	Number Passing or Achieving Regents Equivalency (b)	Percentage Passing =[(b)/(a)]*100	
Geometry CC Regents	6	6	100%	
Earth Science Regents	1	1	100%	
Overall	7	7	100%	

# Pathway Exam Passing Rate by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort

Cohort Designation	Number in Cohort	Percent Passing a Pathway Exam
2012	N/A	N/A
2013	2	100%
2014	7	100%

Harlem Village Academy East exceeded the measure.

#### SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION GOAL

Harlem Village Academy East achieved all of the six high school graduation goals.

Туре	Measure	Outcome
Leading Indicator	Each year, 75 percent of students in first and second year high school Total Graduation Cohorts will earn at least ten credits (if 44 needed for graduation) or five credits (if 22 needed for graduation) each year.	Exceeded
Leading Indicator	Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total Graduation Cohort will score at least 65 on at least three different New York State Regents exams required for graduation by the completion of their second year in the cohort.	Exceeded
Absolute	Each year, 75 percent of students in the fourth year high school Total Graduation Cohort will graduate.	Exceeded
Absolute	Each year, 95 percent of students in the fifth year high school Total Graduation Cohort will graduate.	Exceeded
Comparative	Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Graduation Cohort graduating after the completion of their fourth year will exceed that of the Total Graduation Cohort from the school district of comparison.	Exceeded
Absolute	Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total Cohort pursuing an alternative graduation pathway will achieve a Regents equivalency score and pass an approved pathway assessment required for graduation by the end of their fourth year.	Exceeded

#### **ACTION PLAN**

Our goal is to improve our measurable results on state tests while continuing our quest to cultivate in our students the sophisticated intellectual capacity and social-emotional skills that they will need to successfully graduate from college. We have implemented a comprehensive academic program that addresses the unique needs of the students who enter HVA East in Kindergarten or have previously entered HVA East in 5th grade. Our program integrates curriculum, assessment, and teacher professional development with the goal of enabling our students to be college ready.

### **GOAL 2: COLLEGE PREPARATION**

#### **GOAL 2: COLLEGE PREPARATION**

Students will gain admission to college.

#### **Goal 2: Absolute Measure**

Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will demonstrate their preparation for college by at least one or some combination of the following indicators:

- Passing an Advanced Placement ("AP") exam with a score of 3 or higher;
- Earning a score of 4 or higher on an International Baccalaureate ("IB") exam;
- Passing a College Level Examination Program ("CLEP") exam;
- Passing a college level course offered at a college or university or through a school partnership with a college or university;
- Achieving the college and career readiness benchmark on the SAT; or,
- Earning a Regents diploma with advanced designation;

#### **METHOD**

Schools use any method listed here, or any combination thereof, to demonstrate that at least 75 percent of graduates are prepared to engage in rigorous college level coursework. The school should select only those methods listed here that it uses to demonstrate the college readiness of its students and eliminate those that it will not. For instance, high schools that do not deliver an IB Program as part of their high school design do not report on the IB option. The school reports on the number of students who attempted to achieve each indicator, the number who succeeded, and the corresponding percentage. Additionally, the school should report on the overall number of students who graduated after four years, the number of those graduates who achieved any of the relevant measures, and the overall percentage achieving the measure.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the percent of graduating students demonstrating preparation for college.

#### Percentage of the 2014 Total Cohort Graduates Demonstrating College Preparation by Indicator

Indicator	Number of Graduates who Attempted the Indicator	Number who Achieved Indicator	Percentage of Graduates who Achieved Indicator
Earning a score of 4 or higher on an International Baccalaureate ("IB") exam	32	19	59.4%
Achieving the college and career readiness benchmark on the SAT – Evidence-Based Reading and Writing	53	25	47.2%
Achieving the college and career readiness benchmark on the SAT – Math	53	11	20.8%
Overall	58 <sup>3</sup>	28	48.3%

Harlem Village Academy East did not meet the measure.

#### **Goal 2: Absolute Measure**

Each year, the College, Career, and Civic Readiness Index ("CCCRI") for the school's Total Cohort will exceed the Measure of Interim Progress ("MIP") set forth in the state's ESSA accountability system.

#### **METHOD**

The state's recently finalized ESSA plan includes a College, Career, and Civic Readiness Index that measures the rate of completion among the Total Cohort of a variety of indicators of readiness for the next step after high school. Indicators that are more rigorous and that are therefore more difficult to attain receive greater weight in the new CCCRI (e.g., attaining a Regents diploma and a score of 4 or higher on an IB exam). Conversely, some less rigorous indicators that were not included in the College and Career Readiness Index under the state's NCLB accountability system are included in the CCCRI (e.g., completion of a high school equivalency program).<sup>4</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> This number should match the number of graduates reported under the high school graduation goal.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> For more detail about the weighting of college readiness methods for calculation of the CCCRI, see page 64 of the state's finalized ESSA plan here: <a href="www.p12.nysed.gov/accountability/essa/documents/nys-essa-plan-final-1-16-2018.pdf">www.p12.nysed.gov/accountability/essa/documents/nys-essa-plan-final-1-16-2018.pdf</a>

To achieve this measure, the school must have a CCCRI value that equals or exceeds the 2017-18 CCCRI MIP for all students. The state will calculate and disseminate the MIP in the summer of 2018. The CCCRI is calculated by multiplying the number of students in the cohort demonstrating college and career readiness by the weighting for the method by which the student demonstrated college and career readiness, divided by the number of students in the cohort. The highest possible CCCRI is 200.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the College, Career, and Civic Readiness Index for the school's Total Cohort.

CCCRI Performance by Cohort Year							
Graduation Year	Cohort	Number of Students in Cohort	MIP	School CCCRI			
2015-16	2012	42	N/A	N/A			
2016-17	2013	49	N/A	N/A			
2017-18	2014	58	97.4	159.5			

Harlem Village Academy East exceeded the measure.

#### **Goal 2: Comparative Measure**

Each year, the school's CCCRI for the Total Cohort will exceed that of the district of comparison's Total Cohort.

#### **METHOD**

The school compares the CCCRI of students from the fourth year in the charter school Total Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of comparison.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the comparison of the CCCRI for students from the fourth year in the charter school's Total Cohort and Community School District 4.

#### CCCRI of Fourth-Year Total Cohort by Charter School and School District

Cohort	Charter School	School District
2012	N/A	N/A
2013	N/A	N/A
2014	159.5	Not available

Harlem Village Academy East achieved a College, Career, and Civic Readiness Index of 159.5. The CCCRI for Community School District 4 was not available for comparison at the time this report was completed.

#### **Goal 2: Absolute Measure**

Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will matriculate into a college or university in the year after graduation.

#### **METHOD**

The ultimate measure of whether a college prep high school has lived up to its mission is whether students actually enroll and succeed in college. Schools track and report the percentage of fourth-year Total Cohort graduates who matriculate into a two or four-year college program in the fall following graduation.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the percent of graduates enrolling in a college or university for each cohort as determined by data from the National Student Clearinghouse and student communication.

#### Matriculation Rate of Graduates by Year

Cohort	Number of	Number Enrolled	Matriculation		
	Graduates in 2 or 4-year		Rate		
Conort		Program in Fall			
	(a)	(b)	=[(b)/(a)]*100		
2012	39	38	97.4%		
2013 49		46	93.9%		
2014	58	56	96.6%		

Harlem Village Academy East exceeded the measure.

#### SUMMARY OF THE COLLEGE PREPARATION GOAL

Harlem Village Academy East achieved two of the three measurable college preparation goals.

Туре	Measure (Accountability Plan from 2012-13 or later)	Outcome
Absolute	Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will demonstrate their preparation for college by one or more possible indicators of college readiness.	Did not meet
Absolute	Exceeded	
Comparative	Each year, the school's CCCRI for the Total Cohort will exceed that of the district's Total Cohort.	The school's CCCRI was 159.5. The district's CCCRI was not available at the time this report was completed.
Absolute	Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will matriculate into a college or university in the year after graduation.	Exceeded

#### **ACTION PLAN**

Our goal is to improve our measurable results on state tests while continuing our quest to cultivate in our students the sophisticated intellectual capacity and social-emotional skills that they will need to successfully graduate from college. We have implemented a comprehensive academic program that addresses the unique needs of the students who enter HVA East in Kindergarten or have previously entered HVA East in 5th grade. Our program integrates curriculum, assessment, and teacher professional development with the goal of enabling our students to be college ready.

### **GOAL 3: ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS**

# Goal 3: English Language Arts

Students will meet or exceed state performance standards for mastery of skills and content knowledge in the area of English language arts. Students will also demonstrate proficiency in advanced skills in the area of English language arts necessary for admission into and success in college.

#### **Goal 3: Absolute Measure**

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will perform at or above proficiency on the New York State English language arts examination for grades 3-8.

#### **METHOD**

The school administered the New York State Testing Program English language arts ("ELA") assessment to students in 3rd through 8th grade in April 2018. Each student's raw score has been converted to a grade-specific scaled score and a performance level.

The table below summarizes participation information for this year's test administration. The table indicates total enrollment and total number of students tested. It also provides a detailed breakdown of those students excluded from the exam. Note that this table includes all students according to grade level, even if they have not enrolled in at least their second year (defined as enrolled by BEDS day of the previous school year).

# 2017-18 State English Language Arts Exam Number of Students Tested and Not Tested

Crado	Total		Total			
Grade	Tested	IEP	IEP ELL Absent Refus		Refused	Enrolled
3	60	0	0	0	5	65
4	48	0	0	0	2	50
5	57	0	0	0	0	57
6	62	0	0	0	0	62
7	38	0	0	0	1	39
8	45	0	0	0	1	46
All	310	0	0	0	9	319

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the results of the 2017-18 State English Language Arts exam.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Students exempted from this exam according to their Individualized Education Program (IEP), because of English Language Learners (ELL) status, or absence for at least some part of the exam.

Performance on 2017-18 State English Language Arts Exam

By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year

Cuadas	All Stu	dents	Enrolled in at least their Second Year		
Grades	Percent Proficient	Number Tested	Percent Proficient	Number Tested	
3	63.3%	60	63.3%	60	
4	50.0%	48	50.0%	48	
5	57.9%	57	57.9%	57	
6	51.6%	62	51.6%	62	
7	28.9%	38	28.9%	38	
8	55.6%	45	56.8%	44	
All	52.6%	310	52.8%	309	

Harlem Village Academy East did not meet the measure.

#### ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE

The table below shows the results of the 2015-16, 2016-17, and 2017-18 State English Language Arts exam. There is a year-to-year increase in the percent of students enrolled in at least their second year achieving proficiency.

#### ELA Performance by Grade Level and Year

	Department of Charles to Funcilla display to Atlanta Thesis Conserved Warn									
	Percent of Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year									
		Achieving Proficiency								
Grade	201	15-16	2016		2017-18					
	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number				
	rercent	Tested	rercent	Tested	rercent	Tested				
3	39.2%	79	53.6%	69	63.3%	60				
4	-	-	63.2%	68	50.0%	48				
5	-	-	-	-	57.9%	57				
6	15.0%	60	24.4%	45	51.6%	62				
7	13.6%	59	32.7%	52	28.9%	38				
8	31.9%	47	51.9%	52	56.8%	44				
All	25.7%	245	47.2%	286	52.8%	309				

<sup>\*</sup>The data have been omitted in cases where there were less than 10 students tested.

#### **Goal 3: Absolute Measure**

Each year, the school's aggregate Performance Index ("PI") on the State English language arts exam will meet that year's state Measure of Interim Progress ("MIP") set forth in the state's ESSA accountability system.

#### **METHOD**

In New York State, ESSA school performance goals are met by showing that an absolute proportion of a school's students who have taken the English language arts test have scored at the partially

Harlem Village Academy East Charter School 2017-18 Accountability Plan Progress Report Page 18 of 60

proficient, or proficient and advanced performance levels (Levels 2 or 3 & 4). The percentage of students at each of these three levels is used to calculate a PI and determine if the school has met the MIP set each year by the state's ESSA accountability system. To achieve this measure, all tested students must have a PI value that equals or exceeds the state's 2017-18 English language arts MIP for all students. The state plans to calculate and disseminate the MIP in summer 2018. The PI is the sum of the percent of students in all tested grades combined scoring at Level 2, plus two times the percent of students scoring at Level 3, plus two-and-a-half times the percent of students scoring at Level 4. Thus, the highest possible PI is 250.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The state's English language arts MIP for all students is 100.7.

The table below shows the calculation of the school's 2017-18 English language arts Performance Index.

English Language Arts 2017-18 Performance Index									
Number in		Perce	nt of Stude	nts at	Each Perforn	nance L	evel		
Cohort	Level 1	Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4							
310	12.9%	12.9% 34.5% 38.1% 14.5%					14.5%		
	PI	=	34.5	+	38.1	+	14.5	=	87.1
					38.1	+	14.5	=	52.6
						+	(.5)*14.5	=	7.3
							PI	=	146.9

Harlem Village Academy East exceeded the measure.

#### **Goal 3: Comparative Measure**

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second year and performing at proficiency on the state English language arts exam will be greater than that of all students in the same tested grades in the school district of comparison.

#### **METHOD**

A school compares tested students enrolled in at least their second year to all tested students in the public school district of comparison. Comparisons are between the results for each grade in which the school had tested students in at least their second year at the school and the total result for all students at the corresponding grades in the school district.<sup>6</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> Schools can acquire these data when the New York State Education Department releases its database containing grade level ELA and math test results for all schools and districts statewide. The NYSED announces the release of the data on its <a href="News Release webpage">News Release webpage</a>.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the results of the 2017-18 State English Language Arts exam for Harlem Village Academy East and Community School District 4.

# 2017-18 State English Language Arts Exam Charter School and District Performance by Grade Level

	Percent	of Students at	or Above Pro	ficiency
Grade	Charter School Students In At Least 2 <sup>nd</sup> Year		Charter School Students In At Least 2 <sup>nd</sup> Year  All District Studer	
	Percent	Percent Number Tested		Number Tested
3	63.3%	60	47.0%	899
4	50.0%	48	39.0%	886
5	57.9%	57	34.0%	871
6	51.6%	62	43.0%	910
7	28.9%	38	36.0%	912
8	56.8%	44	40.0%	905
All	52.8%	309	39.8%	5383

Harlem Village Academy East met the measure for grades 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, and overall average. The school did not meet the measure for grade 7.

#### ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE

The table below shows the results of the 2015-16, 2016-17, and 2017-18 State English Language Arts exam for Harlem Village Academy East and Community School District 4. There is a year-to-year increase in the percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year achieving proficiency.

English Language Arts Performance of Charter School and Local District by Grade Level and School Year

	Percent o	Percent of Students Enrolled in at Least their Second Year Scoring at or				
		Above Proficiency Compared to District Students				
Grade	2015	5-16	201	6-17	201	7-18
	Charter School	District	Charter School	District	Charter School	District
3	39.2%	38.0%	53.6%	36.0%	63.3%	47.0%
4	-	-	63.2%	35.0%	50.0%	39.0%
5	-	30.0%	-	30.0%	57.9%	34.0%
6	15.0%	27.0%	24.4%	27.0%	51.6%	43.0%
7	13.6%	30.0%	32.7%	31.0%	28.9%	36.0%
8	31.9%	32.0%	51.9%	39.0%	56.8%	40.0%
All	25.7%	31.3%	47.2%	33.1%	52.8%	39.8%

<sup>\*</sup>The data have been omitted in cases where there were less than 10 students tested.

#### **Goal 3: Comparative Measure**

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the state English language arts exam by an effect size of 0.3 or above (performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree) according to a regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students among all public schools in New York State.

#### **METHOD**

The SUNY Charter Schools Institute ("Institute") conducts a comparative performance analysis, which compares the school's performance to that of demographically similar public schools statewide. The Institute uses a regression analysis to control for the percentage of economically disadvantaged students among all public schools in New York State. The Institute compares the school's actual performance to the predicted performance of public schools with a similar concentration of economically disadvantaged students. The difference between the school's actual and predicted performance, relative to other schools with similar economically disadvantaged statistics, produces an Effect Size. An Effect Size of 0.3, or performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree, is the requirement for achieving this measure.

Given the timing of the state's release of economically disadvantaged data and the demands of the data analysis, the 2017-18 analysis is not yet available. This report contains <u>2016-17</u> results, the most recent Comparative Performance Analysis available.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the Comparative Performance Analysis for the 2016-17 state English language arts exam.

<u> 20.</u>	<u>16-17</u> English La	anguage Arts	Comparative Perf	formance	by Grad	e Level

Grade	Percent Economically	Number Tested		f Students els 3&4	Difference between Actual and Predicted	Effect Size
	Disadvantaged		Actual	Predicted	and Predicted	
3	76.3	69	54	35.0	19.0	1.08
4	84.0	68	63	29.4	33.6	1.84
5	87.7	68	7	22.2	-15.2	-1.08
6	88.9	45	24	18.5	5.5	0.43
7	78.2	52	33	31.5	1.5	0.08
8	81.4	53	51	35.0	16.0	0.83
All	82.6	355	39.4	28.9	10.5	0.55

School's Overall Comparative Performance:	
Higher than expected to a meaningful degree	

Harlem Village Academy East exceeded the measure.

#### ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE

The table below shows the Comparative Performance Analysis for the 2014-15, 2015-16, and 2016-17 state English language arts exam.

English Language	Arte Com	narativa Dard	Farmanca h	v School Voor
English Language A	Arts Com	parative Peri	ormance t	ly School rear,

School Year	Grades	Percent Economically Disadvantaged	Number Tested	Actual	Predicted	Effect Size
2014-15	5th-8th	83.7	259	17.6	18.1	-0.07
2015-16	3rd, 5th-8th	82.0	312	23.4	26.2	-0.18
2016-17	3rd-8th	82.6	355	39.4	28.9	0.55

#### Goal 3: Growth Measure<sup>7</sup>

Each year, under the state's Growth Model, the school's mean unadjusted growth percentile in English language arts for all tested students in grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50.

#### **METHOD**

This measure examines the change in performance of the same group of students from one year to the next and the progress they are making in comparison to other students with the same score in the previous year. The analysis only includes students who took the state exam in 2016-17 and also have a state exam score from 2015-16 including students who were retained in the same grade. Students with the same 2015-16 score are ranked by their 2016-17 score and assigned a percentile based on their relative growth in performance (student growth percentile). Students' growth percentiles are aggregated school-wide to yield a school's mean growth percentile. In order for a school to perform above the target for this measure, it must have a mean growth percentile greater than 50.

Given the timing of the state's release of Growth Model data, the 2017-18 analysis is not yet available. This report contains 2016-17 results, the most recent Growth Model data available.<sup>8</sup>

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the unadjusted mean growth percentiles by grade level for Harlem Village Academy East for 2016-17.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> See Guidelines for <u>Creating a SUNY Accountability Plan</u> for an explanation.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> Schools can acquire these data from the NYSED's Business Portal: portal.nysed.gov.

2016-17 English Language Arts Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level

Grade	Mean Growth Percentile			
Grade	School	Target		
4	59.0	50.0		
5	32.5	50.0		
6	55.0	50.0		
7	61.5	50.0		
8	67.0	50.0		
All	<u>54.0</u>	50.0		

Harlem Village Academy East exceeded the measure.

#### **ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE**

The table below shows the unadjusted mean growth percentiles by grade level for Harlem Village Academy East for 2014-15, 2015-16, and 2016-17.

English Language Arts Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level and School Year

	Mean Growth Percentile					
Grade	2014-15	2015-16	2016-17	Target		
4	-	-	59.0	50.0		
5	33.0	44.5	32.5	50.0		
6	50.5	47.0	55.0	50.0		
7	52.5	44.5	61.5	50.0		
8	47.0	51.5	67.0	50.0		
All	45.0	46.5	54.0	50.0		

The table below shows the unadjusted mean growth percentiles by grade level for Harlem Village Academy East for 2017-18. The 2017-18 analysis is based on the initial release of the state's Growth Model data.

<u>2017-18</u> English Language Arts Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level

	Mean Growth Percentile			
Grade	School	Statewide		
	301001	Median		
4	43.5	50.0		
5	55.5	50.0		
6	79.0	50.0		
7	49.0	50.0		
8	66.5	50.0		
All	<u>60.0</u>	50.0		

Based on initial release of the state's Growth Model data for 2017-18, Harlem Village Academy East is on track to exceed the measure next year.

#### SUMMARY OF THE ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS GOAL

Harlem Village Academy East achieved four of the English Language Arts goals.

Туре	Measure	Outcome
Absolute	Each year, 75 percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second year will perform at proficiency on the New York State English language arts exam for grades 3-8.	Did not meet
Absolute	Each year, the school's aggregate PI on the state's English language arts exam will meet that year's state MIP as set forth in the state's ESSA accountability system.	Exceeded
Comparative	Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second year and performing at proficiency on the state English language arts exam will be greater than that of students in the same tested grades in the school district of comparison.	Exceeded
Comparative	Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the state English language arts exam by an effect size of 0.3 or above (performing higher than expected to a small degree) according to a regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students among all public schools in New York State. (Using 2016-17 results.)	Exceeded
Growth	Each year, under the state's Growth Model the school's mean unadjusted growth percentile in English language arts for all tested students in grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50. (Using 2016-17 results.)	Exceeded for 2016-17 Exceeded for 2017-18

#### **ACTION PLAN**

Our goal is to improve our measurable results on state tests while continuing our quest to cultivate in our students the sophisticated intellectual capacity and social-emotional skills that they will need to successfully graduate from college. We have implemented a comprehensive academic program that addresses the unique needs of the students who enter HVA East in Kindergarten or have previously entered HVA East in 5th grade. Our program integrates curriculum, assessment, and teacher professional development with the goal of enabling our students to be college ready.

### HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS

#### **Goal 3: Absolute Measure**

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.

#### **METHOD**

The school administered a Regents English exam that students must pass to graduate. The school scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100. The State Education Department currently defines the college and career readiness standard as scoring at or above Performance Level 4 (meeting Common Core expectations) on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core). This measure examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort that achieved at least Performance Level 4 by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the percent of students scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) for each accountability cohort.

# Percent Scoring at Least Level 4 on Regents English Common Core Exam by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort<sup>10</sup>

Cohort Designation	Number in Cohort	Percent Scoring at Least Level 4 on Common Core exam (or Percent Scoring at Least 75 if student took the Regents Comprehensive English Exam)
2012	42	88.1%
2013	49	77.6%
2014	58	62.1%

Harlem Village Academy East did not meet the measure.

#### **ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE**

The table below shows the interim performance of cohorts as the percent scoring Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> Students in the 2014 and 2015 high school Accountability Cohorts may have taken the Regents Comprehensive English exam. As such, for 2017-18 and 2018-19, the Institute will continue to count any student who achieved at least a scale score of 75 (the previous target for college and career readiness) on that exam as having met the target for this measure.

 $<sup>^{10}</sup>$  Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam

#### Percent Achieving at Least Level 4 by Cohort and Year

Cohort	2015-16		2016-17		2017-18	
Designation	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
Designation	in Cohort	Level 4	in Cohort	Level 4	in Cohort	Level 4
2014	64	56.3%	62	56.5%	58	62.1%
2015	55	-	52	28.8%	49	51.0%
2016			28	-	26	19.2%
2017					41	-

#### **Goal 3: Absolute Measure**

Each year, 80 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.

#### **METHOD**

The school administered a Regents English exam that students must pass to graduate. The school scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100. The State Education Department currently defines the cut off for passing and meeting the requirement for graduation as scoring at or above Performance Level 3 (partially meeting Common Core expectations) on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core). This measure examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort that achieved at least Performance Level 3 by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the percent of students scoring at or above Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) for each accountability cohort.

# Percent Scoring at Least Level 3 on Regents English Common Core Exam by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort<sup>11</sup>

Cohort Designation	Number in Cohort	Percent Scoring at Least Level 3 on the Regents English Exam
2012	42	100.0%
2013	49	100.0%
2014	58	100.0%

Harlem Village Academy East exceeded the measure.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam

#### ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE

The table below shows the interim performance of cohorts as the percent scoring Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core).

#### Percent Achieving at Least Level 3 by Cohort and Year

Cohort	2015-16		2016-17		2017-18	
Designation	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
Designation	in Cohort	Passing	in Cohort	Passing	in Cohort	Passing
2014	64	85.9%	62	93.5%	58	100.0%
2015	55	-	52	32.7%	49	75.5%
2016			28	-	26	23.0%
2017					41	-

#### **Goal 3: Absolute Measure**

Each year, the Performance Index ("PI") on the Regents English exam of students completing their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet the state's Measure of Interim Progress ("MIP") set forth in the state's ESSA accountability system.

#### **METHOD**

The state's finalized and approved ESSA plan in 2018 includes a revised calculation of the high school Performance Index. In it, schools now receive additional credit for students scoring at Accountability Level 4.<sup>12</sup> To achieve this measure, all tested students in the Accountability Cohort must have a PI that equals or exceeds the state's 2017-18 English language arts MIP for all students. The state plans to calculate and disseminate the MIP in summer 2018.

The Performance Index is calculated as such: (percent of students scoring at Accountability Level 2) + 2\*(percent of students scoring at Accountability Level 3) + 2.5 \* (percent of students scoring at Accountability Level 4). Thus, the highest possible PI is 250. The basis for the percent of students is the school's fourth year Total Cohort for Graduation. The Regents Examination in English Language Arts (Common Core) is scored on a scale from 0 to 100; 0 to 64 is Accountability Level 1, 65 to 78 is Accountability Level 2; 79 to 84 is Accountability Level 3, and 85 to 100 is Accountability Level 4.

#### RESULTS AND EVALUATION

The state's English language arts MIP for all students is 189.4.

The table below shows the calculation of the school's 2017-18 Regents English Performance Index.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> For more details on the score ranges used to determine Accountability Levels as distinguished from Performance Levels, see

www.p12.nysed.gov/irs/sirs/documents/2017RegentsScoreRangesforAnnualandAccountabilityReporting.pdf

English Language Arts Performance Index (PI)
For the 2014 High School Accountability Cohort

Number in	umber in Percent of Students at Each Accountability Level							
Cohort	Level 1	Level 2		Level 3		Level 4		
58	0.0%	37.9%		25.9%		36.2%		
	PI	= 37.9	+	25.9	+	36.2	=	100.0
				25.9	+	36.2	=	62.1
					+	(.5)*36.2	=	<u>18.1</u>
						PI	=	180.2

Harlem Village Academy East did not meet the measure.

#### **Goal 3: Comparative Measure**

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort meeting or exceeding Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) will exceed the percentage of comparable students in the district meeting or exceeding Common Core expectations.

#### **METHOD**

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school Total Cohort to that of the respective Total Cohort of students in the school district of comparison. In order to meet or exceed Common Core expectations, a student must achieve Performance Level 4 or 5. Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth year, the school presents most recently available school district results.

#### RESULTS AND EVALUATION

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort achieving Performance Level 4 or higher on the English Regents for Harlem Village Academy East compared to Community School District 4.

Percent Achieving Performance Level 4 or Higher on English Regents of Fourth-Year Accountability Cohorts by Charter School and School District

		Charter S	School	School District		
Coho	rt	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	
		Level 4 or 5	in Cohort	Level 4 or 5	in Cohort	
2012	2	88.1%	42	38.0%	928	
2013	3	77.6%	49	70.0%	973	
2014	ļ	62.0%	58	N/A	N/A	

District results for the 2014 cohort were not available at the time this report was completed. When compared to the 2013 average, Harlem Village Academy East did not meet the measure.

#### **Goal 3: Comparative Measure**

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort at least partially meeting Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) will exceed the percentage of comparable students in the district at least partially meeting Common Core expectations.

#### **METHOD**

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school Total Cohort to that of the respective Total Cohort of students in the school district of comparison. In order to at least partially meet Common Core expectations, a student would need to pass the exam and score at Performance Level 3 or higher (i.e. scoring at least 65). Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth year, the school presents most recently available school district results.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort achieving Performance Level 3 or higher on the English Regents for Harlem Village Academy East compared to Community School District 4.

# Percent Achieving Performance Level 3 or Higher on English Regents of Fourth-Year Accountability Cohorts by Charter School and School District

	Charter S	School	School District		
Cohort	Percent Number		Percent	Number	
Cohort	Level 3 or	in Cohort	Level 3 or	in Cohort	
	Higher		Higher		
2012	100.0%	42	84.7%	928	
2013	100.0%	49	86.9%	973	
2014	100.0%	58	N/A	N/A	

District results for the 2014 cohort were not available at the time this report was completed. When compared to the 2013 average, Harlem Village Academy East met the measure.

#### **Goal 3: Comparative Measure**

Each year, the Performance Index ("PI") in Regents English of students in the fourth year of their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of comparable students from the school district of comparison.

#### **METHOD**

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school Accountability Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of comparison. Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth year, the school presents most recently available school district results.

Harlem Village Academy East Charter School 2017-18 Accountability Plan Progress Report Page 29 of 60

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the Regents English Performance Index for Harlem Village Academy East and Community School District 4 for each cohort.

# English Regents Performance Index (PI)<sup>13</sup> of Fourth-Year Accountability Cohorts by Charter School and School District

	Charter	School	School District		
Cohort	PI	Cohort	PI	Cohort	
	PI	Size	PI	Size	
2012	188.1	42	172.0	928	
2013	191.8	49	176.0	973	
2014	180.2	58	N/A	N/A	

District results for the 2014 cohort were not available at the time this report was completed. When compared to the 2013 average, Harlem Village Academy East met the measure.

#### **Goal 3: Growth Measure**

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score proficient on their New York State 8<sup>th</sup> grade English language arts exam will meet the college and career readiness standard (currently scoring at Performance Level 4 and fully meeting Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.

#### **METHOD**

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its English language arts program by enabling students who were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to meet the English requirement for the college and career readiness standard.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the passing rate with a Level 4 on the Regents exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) for students who were not proficient on their New York State 8<sup>th</sup> grade English Language Arts exam.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>13</sup> For an explanation of the procedure to calculate the school's PI, see page 28.

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 4 on Common Core exam among Students

Who Were Not Proficient in the 8<sup>th</sup> Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort <sup>14</sup>

Cohort Designation	Number in Cohort	Percent Achieving Level 4 on Common Core exam (or Scoring at Least 75 on the Regents Comprehensive English Exam)
2012	13	92.3%
2013	28	67.9%
2014	36	41.7%

Harlem Village Academy East did not meet the measure.

#### **Goal 3: Growth Measure**

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score proficient on their New York State 8<sup>th</sup> grade English language arts exam will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.

#### **METHOD**

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its English language arts program by enabling students who were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to meet the English requirement for graduation.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the passing rate with a Level 3 on the Regents exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) for students who were not proficient on their New York State 8<sup>th</sup> grade English Language Arts exam.

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 3 on Common Core exam among Students

Who Were Not Proficient in the 8<sup>th</sup> Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort <sup>15</sup>

Cohort Designation	Number in Cohort	Percent Achieving Level 3 on Regents English Exam
2012	13	100.0%
2013	28	100.0%
2014	36	100.0%

Harlem Village Academy East exceeded the measure.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam

 $<sup>^{15}</sup>$  Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam

# SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS GOAL 16

Harlem Village Academy East achieved four of the High School English Language Arts goals.

Туре	Measure	Outcome
Absolute	Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.	Did not meet
Absolute	Each year, 80 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.	Exceeded
Absolute	Each year, the Performance Index (PI) on the Regents English exam of students completing their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet the state Measure of Interim Progress (MIP) set forth in the state's ESSA accountability system.	Did not meet
Comparative	Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort meeting or exceeding Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) will exceed the percentage of comparable students from the district meeting or exceeding Common Core expectations.	Did not meet
Comparative	Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort partially meeting Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) will exceed the percentage of comparable students in the district at least partially meeting Common Core expectations.	Exceeded
Comparative	Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in Regents English of students in the fourth year of their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of comparable students from the school district of comparison. (Using 2016-17 school district results.)	Exceeded
Growth	Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score proficient on their New York State 8 <sup>th</sup> grade English language arts exam will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.	Did not meet
Growth	Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score proficient on their New York State 8 <sup>th</sup> grade English language arts exam will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at least Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.	Exceeded

#### **ACTION PLAN**

Our goal is to improve our measurable results on state tests while continuing our quest to cultivate in our students the sophisticated intellectual capacity and social-emotional skills that they will need to successfully graduate from college. We have implemented a comprehensive academic program that addresses the unique needs of the students who enter HVA East in Kindergarten or have previously entered HVA East in 5th grade. Our program integrates curriculum, assessment, and teacher professional development with the goal of enabling our students to be college ready.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>16</sup> If the school includes a middle school component, add these measures to the subject area goal for the younger grades.

### **GOAL 4: MATHEMATICS**

#### Goal 4: Mathematics

Students will meet or exceed state standards for mastery of skills and content knowledge in the area of mathematics. Students will demonstrate further proficiency in advanced skills in mathematics necessary for admission into and success in college.

#### **Goal 4: Absolute Measure**

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will perform at proficiency on the New York State mathematics examination for grades 3-8.

#### **METHOD**

The school administered the New York State Testing Program mathematics assessment to students in 3rd through 8th grade in April 2018. Each student's raw score has been converted to a grade-specific scaled score and a performance level.

The table below summarizes participation information for this year's test administration. The table indicates total enrollment and total number of students tested. It also provides a detailed breakdown of those students excluded from the exam. Note that this table includes all students according to grade level, even if they have not enrolled in at least their second year.

2017-18 State Mathematics Exam

Number of Students Tested and Not Tested

Grade	Total		Total			
Grade	Tested	IEP	ELL	Absent	Refused	Enrolled
3	60	0	0	0	5	65
4	47	0	0	0	3	50
5	56	0	0	0	1	57
6	60	0	0	0	2	62
7	39	0	0	0	0	39
8	46	0	0	0	0	46
All	308	0	0	0	11	319

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the results of the 2017-18 State Mathematics exam.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>17</sup> Students exempted from this exam according to their Individualized Education Program (IEP), because of English Language Learners (ELL) status, or absence for at least some part of the exam.

# Performance on 2017-18 State Mathematics Exam By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year

Cuadaa	All Stu	dents	Enrolled in at least their Second Year		
Grades	Percent Proficient	Number Tested	Percent Proficient	Number Tested	
3	81.7%	60	81.7%	60	
4	63.8%	47	63.8%	47	
5	73.2%	56	73.2%	56	
6	56.7%	60	56.7%	60	
7	53.8%	39	53.8%	39	
8	45.7%	46	46.7%	45	
All	63.6%	308	63.8%	307	

Harlem Village Academy East did not meet the measure.

#### **ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE**

The table below shows the results of the 2015-16, 2016-17, and 2017-18 State Mathematics exam. There is a year-to-year increase in the percent of students enrolled in at least their second year achieving proficiency.

#### Mathematics Performance by Grade Level and School Year

	Percent of Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year							
Grade	Achieving Proficiency							
	201	15-16	2016-	-17	2017-18			
	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number		
		Tested	Percent	Tested		Tested		
3	45.6%	79	59.4%	69	81.7%	60		
4	1	ı	71.0%	69	63.8%	47		
5	1	ı	ı	-	73.2%	56		
6	37.3%	59	40.9%	44	56.7%	60		
7	51.7%	60	28.8%	52	53.8%	39		
8	19.1%	47	32.7% 52		46.7%	45		
All	40.0%	245	49.0%	286	63.8%	307		

<sup>\*</sup>The data have been omitted in cases where there were less than 10 students tested.

#### **Goal 4: Absolute Measure**

Each year, the school's aggregate Performance Index ("PI") on the state mathematics exam will meet that year's state Measure of Interim Progress ("MIP") set forth in the state's ESSA accountability system.

#### **METHOD**

In New York State, ESSA school performance goals are met by showing that an absolute proportion of a school's students who have taken the mathematics test have scored at the partially proficient, or proficient and advanced performance levels (Levels 2 or 3 & 4). The percentage of students at each of these three levels is used to calculate a PI and determine if the school has met the MIP set each year by the state's ESSA accountability system. To achieve this measure, all tested students must have a PI value that equals or exceeds the state's 2017-18 mathematics MIP for all students. The state plans to calculate and disseminate the MIP in summer 2018. The PI is the sum of the percent of students in all tested grades combined scoring at Level 2, plus two times the percent of students scoring at Level 3, plus two-and-a-half times the percent of students scoring at Level 4. Thus, the highest possible PI is 250.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The state's mathematics MIP for all students is 103.3.

The table below shows the calculation of the school's 2017-18 mathematics Performance Index.

Mathematics 2017-18 Performance Level Index (PI)									
Number in	Percent of Students at Each Performance Level								
Cohort	Level 1		Level 2		Level 3		Level 4		
	13.0%	13.0% 34.7%			38.3%		14.6%		
	PI	=	34.7	+	38.3	+	14.6	=	87.7
					38.3	+	14.6	=	52.9
						+	(.5)*14.6	=	7.3
							PI	=	147.9

Harlem Village Academy East exceeded the measure.

#### **Goal 4: Comparative Measure**

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second year and performing at proficiency on the state mathematics exam will be greater than that of all students in the same tested grades in the school district of comparison.

#### **METHOD**

A school compares the performance of tested students enrolled in at least their second year to that of all tested students in the public school district of comparison. Comparisons are between the results for each grade in which the school had tested students in at least their second year at the school and the total result for all students at the corresponding grades in the school district.<sup>18</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>18</sup> Schools can acquire these data when the New York State Education Department releases its database containing grade level ELA and math test results for all schools and districts statewide. The NYSED announces the release of the data on its <a href="News Release webpage">News Release webpage</a>.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the results of the 2017-18 State mathematics exam for Harlem Village Academy East and Community School District 4.

### 2017-18 State Mathematics Exam Charter School and District Performance by Grade Level

	Percent of Students at or Above Proficiency						
Grade		ool Students st 2 <sup>nd</sup> Year	All District Students				
	Percent	Number Tested	Percent	Number Tested			
3	81.7%	60	45.0%	885			
4	63.8%	47	34.0%	891			
5	73.2%	56	36.0%	870			
6	56.7%	60	31.0%	925			
7	53.8%	39	30.0%	920			
8	46.7%	45	18.0%	591			
All	63.8%	307	<u>33.1%</u>	5082			

Harlem Village Academy East met the measure for grades 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, and overall average.

#### ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE

The table below shows the results of the 2015-16, 2016-17, and 2017-18 State mathematics exam for Harlem Village Academy East and Community School District 4. There is a year-to-year increase in the percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year achieving proficiency.

# Mathematics Performance of Charter School and Local District by Grade Level and School Year

	Percent of Students Enrolled in at Least their Second Year Who Are at							
Grade	Proficiency Compared to Local District Students							
	2015	5-16	201	6-17	2017-18			
	Charter	District	Charter	District	Charter	District		
	School	District	School		School			
3	45.6%	37.0%	59.4%	39.0%	81.7%	45.0%		
4	-	-	71.0%	33.0%	63.8%	34.0%		
5	ı	32.0%	ı	35.0%	73.2%	36.0%		
6	37.3%	25.0%	40.9%	28.0%	56.7%	31.0%		
7	51.7%	22.0%	28.8%	24.0%	53.8%	30.0%		
8	19.1%	16.0%	32.7%	15.0%	46.7%	18.0%		
All	40.0%	26.8%	49.0%	29.5%	63.8%	33.1%		

\*The data have been omitted in cases where there were less than 10 students tested.

## **Goal 4: Comparative Measure**

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the state mathematics exam by an Effect Size of 0.3 or above (performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree) according to a regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students among all public schools in New York State.

## **METHOD**

The Institute conducts a Comparative Performance Analysis, which compares the school's performance to that of demographically similar public schools statewide. The Institute uses a regression analysis to control for the percentage of economically disadvantaged students among all public schools in New York State. The Institute compares the school's actual performance to the predicted performance of public schools with a similar concentration of economically disadvantaged students. The difference between the school's actual and predicted performance, relative to other schools with similar economically disadvantaged statistics, produces an Effect Size. An Effect Size of 0.3, or performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree, is the requirement for achieving this measure.

Given the timing of the state's release of economically disadvantaged data and the demands of the data analysis, the 2017-18 analysis is not yet available. This report contains <u>2016-17</u> results, the most recent Comparative Performance Analysis available.

## **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the Comparative Performance Analysis for the 2016-17 state mathematics exam.

	2016-17 Mat	thematics Comparative	Darformanca	hy Grade Level
--	-------------	-----------------------	-------------	----------------

Percent Grade Economically Disadvantaged		Number Tested		of Students els 3&4	Difference between Actual and Predicted	Effect Size
	Disauvantageu		Actual	Predicted	and Fredicted	
3	76.3	69	59	40.3	18.7	0.95
4	84.0	69	71	29.5	41.5	2.10
5	87.7	68	13	26.9	-13.9	-0.77
6	88.9	44	41	21.6	19.4	1.13
7	78.2	52	29	24.6	4.4	0.22
8	81.4	53	32	14.1	17.9	0.94
All	82.6	355	41.9	27.1	14.7	0.76

School's Overall Comparative Performance:
Higher than expected to a meaningful degree

## ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE

The table below shows the Comparative Performance Analysis for the 2014-15, 2015-16, and 2016-17 state mathematics exam.

## Mathematics Comparative Performance by School Year

School Year	Grades	Percent Economically Disadvantaged	Number Tested	Actual	Predicted	Effect Size
2014-15	5th-8th	83.7	253	33.9	21.2	0.72
2015-16	3rd, 5th-8th	82.0	312	34.4	25.7	0.44
2016-17	3rd-8th	82.6	355	41.9	27.1	0.76

## Goal 4: Growth Measure 19

Each year, under the state's Growth Model, the school's mean unadjusted growth percentile in mathematics for all tested students in grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50.

#### **METHOD**

This measure examines the change in performance of the same group of students from one year to the next and the progress they are making in comparison to other students with the same score in the previous year. The analysis only includes students who took the state exam in 2016-17 and also have a state exam score in 2015-16 including students who were retained in the same grade. Students with the same 2015-16 scores are ranked by their 2016-17 scores and assigned a percentile based on their relative growth in performance (student growth percentile). Students' growth percentiles are aggregated school-wide to yield a school's mean growth percentile. In order for a school to meet the measure, the school would have to achieve a mean growth percentile above the target of 50.

Given the timing of the state's release of Growth Model data, the 2017-18 analysis is not yet available. This report contains 2016-17 results, the most recent Growth Model data available.<sup>20</sup>

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the unadjusted mean growth percentiles by grade level for Harlem Village Academy East for 2016-17.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>19</sup> See Guidelines for <u>Creating a SUNY Accountability Plan</u> for an explanation.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>20</sup> Schools can acquire these data from the NYSED's business portal: portal.nysed.gov.

2016-17 Mathematics Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level

Grade	Mean Growt	Growth Percentile		
Grade	School	Target		
4	72.5	50.0		
5	42.5	50.0		
6	78.5	50.0		
7	59.0	50.0		
8	34.0	50.0		
All	<b>57.5</b> 50.0			

Harlem Village Academy East exceeded the measure.

## ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE

The table below shows the unadjusted mean growth percentiles by grade level for Harlem Village Academy East for 2014-15, 2015-16, and 2016-17.

Mathematics Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level and School Year

	Mean Growth Percentile					
Grade	2014-15	2015-16	2016-17	Target		
4	-	-	72.5	50.0		
5	42.5	30.0	42.5	50.0		
6	63.5	59.5	78.5	50.0		
7	67.0	72.0	59.0	50.0		
8	34.0	34.0	34.0	50.0		
All	50.5	49.5	<u>57.5</u>	50.0		

The table below shows the unadjusted mean growth percentiles by grade level for Harlem Village Academy East for 2017-18. The 2017-18 analysis is based on the initial release of the state's Growth Model data.

<u>2017-18</u> Mathematics Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level

	Mean Growth Percentile				
Grade	School	Statewide			
	301001	Median			
4	48.0	50.0			
5	59.5	50.0			
6	87.5	50.0			
7	63.0	50.0			
8	58.5	50.0			
All	<u>64.0</u>	50.0			

Based on initial release of the state's Growth Model data for 2017-18, Harlem Village Academy East is on track to exceed the measure next year.

## SUMMARY OF THE MATHEMATICS GOAL

Harlem Village Academy East achieved four of the mathematics goals.

Туре	Measure	Outcome
Absolute	Each year, 75 percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second year will perform at proficiency on the New York State mathematics exam for grades 3-8.	Did not meet
Absolute	Each year, the school's aggregate PI on the state's mathematics exam will meet that year's state MIP as set forth in the state's ESSA accountability system.	Exceeded
Comparative	Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second year and performing at proficiency on the state mathematics exam will be greater than that of students in the same tested grades in the school district of comparison.	Exceeded
Comparative	Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the state mathematics exam by an Effect Size of 0.3 or above (performing higher than expected to a small degree) according to a regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students among all public schools in New York State. (Using 2016-17 results.)	Exceeded
Growth	Each year, under the state's Growth Model the school's mean unadjusted growth percentile in mathematics for all tested students in grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50. (Using the 2016-17 results.)	Exceeded for 2016-17 Exceeded for 2017-18

## **ACTION PLAN**

## HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS

#### **Goal 4: Absolute Measure**

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.

#### **METHOD**

The school administered the Regents mathematics exam(s) that students must pass to graduate. The school scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100. The State Education Department currently defines the college and career readiness standard as scoring at or above Performance Level 4 (meeting Common Core expectations) on any Regents Common Core mathematics exams.<sup>21</sup> This measure examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort that achieved at least Performance Level 4 by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the percent of students scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam for each accountability cohort.

# Percent Scoring at Least Level 4 on a Regents Mathematics Common Core Exam by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort<sup>22</sup>

Cohort Designation	Number in Cohort	Percent Scoring at Least Level 4
2012	42	52.4%
2013	49	49.0%
2014	58	6.9%

Harlem Village Academy East did not meet the measure.

#### ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE

The table below shows the interim performance of cohorts as the percent of students scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>21</sup> Students in the 2014 and 2015 high school Accountability Cohorts may have taken the non-Common Core mathematics exams. As such, for 2017-18 and 2018-19, the Institute will continue to count any student who achieved at least a scale score of 80 (the previous target for college and career readiness) on that exam as having met the target for this measure.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>22</sup> Based on the highest score for each student on a mathematics Regents exam

## Percent Achieving at Least Level 4 by Cohort and Year

Cohort	2015	5-16	2010	5-17	2017	7-18
Designation	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
Designation	in Cohort	Level 4	in Cohort	Level 4	in Cohort	Level 4
2014	64	6.3%	62	6.5%	58	6.9%
2015	55	40.0%	52	38.5%	49	36.7%
2016			28	39.3%	26	42.3%
2017					41	29.3%

#### **Goal 4: Absolute Measure**

Each year, 80 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.

## **METHOD**

The school administered the Regents mathematics exam(s) that students must pass to graduate. The school scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100. The State Education Department currently defines the cut off for passing and meeting the requirement for graduation as scoring at or above Performance Level 3 (partially meeting Common Core expectations) on the Regents mathematics exams. This measure examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort that achieved at least Performance Level 3 by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.

## **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the percent of students scoring at or above Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam for each accountability cohort.

Percent Scoring at Least Level 3 on a Regents Mathematics Common Core Exam by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort<sup>23</sup>

Cohort	Number	Percent Scoring at Least			
	in	Level 3 on a Regents			
Designation Cohort		Mathematics Exam			
2012	42	100.0%			
2013	49	100.0%			
2014 58		100.0%			

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>23</sup> Based on the highest score for each student on a mathematics Regents exam

## ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE

The table below shows the interim performance of cohorts as the percent of students scoring at or above Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam.

Pei	rcent A	Achiev	ing	at I	east	Level	3 by	v Cohor	t and Year
		TO THE V		G C I	LCGGL		$\sim$ $\sim$	y Colloi	t arra r car

Cohort Designation	2015	2015-16		2016-17		2017-18	
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	
Designation	in Cohort	Passing	in Cohort	Passing	in Cohort	Passing	
2014	64	98.4%	62	98.4%	58	100.0%	
2015	55	94.5%	52	100.0%	49	100.0%	
2016			28	89.3%	26	100.0%	
2017					41	82.9%	

#### **Goal 4: Absolute Measure**

Each year, the Performance Index ("PI") on the Regents mathematics exam of students completing their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet the state's Measure of Interim Progress ("MIP") set forth in the state's ESSA accountability system.

#### **METHOD**

The state's finalized and approved ESSA plan in 2018 includes a revised calculation of the high school Performance Index. In it, schools now receive additional credit for students scoring at Accountability Level 4.<sup>24</sup> To achieve this measure, all tested students in the Accountability Cohort must have a PI that equals or exceeds the state's 2017-18 mathematics MIP for all students. The state plans to calculate and disseminate the MIP in summer 2018.

The Performance Index is calculated as such: (percent of students scoring at Accountability Level 2) + 2\*(percent of students scoring at Accountability Level 3) + 2.5 \* (percent of students scoring at Accountability Level 4). Thus, the highest possible PI is 250. The basis for the percent of students is the school's fourth year Total Cohort for Graduation. Regents Common Core mathematics exams are scored on a scale from 0 to 100; 0 to 64 is Accountability Level 1, 65 to 79 is Accountability Level 2 (65 to 77 for Algebra II); 80 to 84 is Accountability Level 3 (78 to 84 for Algebra II), and 85 to 100 is Accountability Level 4.

## **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The state's mathematics MIP for all students is 149.1.

The table below shows the calculation of the school's 2017-18 Regents mathematics Performance Index.

www.p12.nysed.gov/irs/sirs/documents/2017RegentsScoreRangesforAnnualandAccountabilityReporting.pdf

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>24</sup> For more details on the score ranges used to determine Accountability Levels as distinguished from Performance Levels, see

Mathematics Performance Index (PI)
For the 2014 High School Accountability Cohort

Number in	Per	Percent of Students at Each Accountability Level				
Cohort	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Level 4		
58	0.0%	77.6%	22.4%	0.0%		
	PI :	= 77.6	+ 22.4	+ 0.0 =	= 100.0	
			22.4	+ 0.0 =	= 22.4	
				+ (.5)*0 =	= <u>0.0</u>	

Ы

122.4

Harlem Village Academy East did not meet the measure.

#### **Goal 4: Comparative Measure**

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort meeting or exceeding Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exam will exceed the percentage of comparable students in the district meeting or exceeding Common Core expectations.

## **METHOD**

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school Total Cohort to that of the respective Total Cohort of students in the school district of comparison. In order to meet or exceed Common Core expectations, a student must achieve Performance Level 4 or 5. Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth year, the school presents most recently available school district results.

## **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort achieving Performance Level 4 or higher on a Regents mathematics exam for Harlem Village Academy East compared to Community School District 4.

Percent Achieving Performance Level 4 or Higher on a Mathematics Regents of Fourth-Year Accountability Cohorts by Charter School and School District

	Charter S	School	School District		
Cohort	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	
	Level 4 or 5	in Cohort	Level 4 or 5	in Cohort	
2012	52.4%	42	25.0%	928	
2013	49.0%	49	35.0%	973	
2014	6.9%	58	N/A	N/A	

District results for the 2014 cohort were not available at the time this report was completed. When compared to the 2013 average, Harlem Village Academy East did not meet the measure.

## **Goal 4: Comparative Measure**

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort at least partially meeting Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exam will exceed the percentage of comparable students in the district at least partially meeting Common Core expectations.

#### **METHOD**

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school Total Cohort to that of the respective Total Cohort of students in the school district of comparison. In order to at least partially meet Common Core expectations, a student would need to pass the exam and score at Performance Level 3 or higher (i.e. scoring at least 65). Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth year, the school presents most recently available school district results.

#### **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort achieving Performance Level 3 or higher on a Regents mathematics exam for Harlem Village Academy East compared to Community School District 4.

Percent Achieving Performance Level 3 or Higher on a Mathematics Regents of Fourth-Year Accountability Cohorts by Charter School and School District

	Charter S	School	School District		
Cabant	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	
Cohort	Level 3 or	in Cohort	Level 3 or	in Cohort	
	Higher		Higher		
2012	100.0%	42	85.5%	928	
2013	100.0%	49	86.9%	973	
2014	100.0%	58	N/A	N/A	

District results for the 2014 cohort were not available at the time this report was completed. When compared to the 2013 average, Harlem Village Academy East exceeded the measure.

#### **Goal 4: Comparative Measure**

Each year, the Performance Index ("PI") in Regents mathematics of students in the fourth year of their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of comparable students from the school district of comparison.

#### **METHOD**

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school Accountability Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of comparison. Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth year, the school presents most recently available school district results.

## **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the Regents mathematics Performance Index for Harlem Village Academy East and Community School District 4 for each cohort.

# Mathematics Regents Performance Index (PI)<sup>25</sup> of Fourth-Year Accountability Cohorts by Charter School and School District

Cohort	Charter	School	School District		
	PI	Cohort	PI	Cohort	
	PI	Size	PI	Size	
2012	178.6	42	175.0	928	
2013	149.0	49	180.0	973	
2014	122.4	58	N/A	N/A	

District results for the 2014 cohort were not available at the time this report was completed. When compared to the 2013 average, Harlem Village Academy East did not meet the measure.

#### **Goal 4: Growth Measure**

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score proficient on their New York State 8<sup>th</sup> grade mathematics exam will meet the college and career readiness standard (currently scoring at Performance Level 4 and fully meeting Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.

## **METHOD**

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its mathematics program by enabling students who were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to grow to meeting the mathematics requirement for the college and career readiness standard.

## **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the passing rate with a Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam for students who were not proficient on their New York State 8<sup>th</sup> grade mathematics exam.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>25</sup> For an explanation of the procedure to calculate the school's PI, see page 46.

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 4 on a Mathematics Regents Exam among Students

Who Were Not Proficient in the 8<sup>th</sup> Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort <sup>26</sup>

Cohort Designation	Number in Cohort	Percent Achieving Level 4 on Common Core Exam
2012	4	0.0%
2013	25	32.0%
2014	34	0.0%

Harlem Village Academy East did not meet the measure.

#### **Goal 4: Growth Measure**

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score proficient on their New York State 8<sup>th</sup> grade mathematics exam will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.

## **METHOD**

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its mathematics program by enabling students who were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to move to meeting the English requirement for graduation.

## **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the passing rate with a Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam for students who were not proficient on their New York State 8<sup>th</sup> grade mathematics exam.

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 3 on a Mathematics Regents Exam among Students

Who Were Not Proficient in the 8<sup>th</sup> Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort <sup>27</sup>

Cohort Designation	Number in Cohort	Percent Achieving Level 3
2012	4	100.0%
2013	25	100.0%
2014	34	100.0%

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>26</sup> Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>27</sup> Based on the highest score for each student on the mathematics Regents exam

# SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS GOAL 28

Harlem Village Academy East achieved three of the high school mathematics goals.

Туре	Measure	Outcome
Absolute	Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.	Did not meet
Absolute	Each year, 80 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.	Exceeded
Absolute	Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in mathematics of students completing their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet the state Measure of Interim Progress (MIP) set forth in the state's ESSA accountability system.	Did not meet
Comparative	Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort meeting or exceeding Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exam will exceed the percentage of comparable students from the district meeting or exceeding Common Core expectations.	Did not meet
Comparative	Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort partially meeting Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exam will exceed the percentage of comparable students in the district at least partially meeting Common Core expectations.	Exceeded
Comparative	Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in Regents mathematics of students in the fourth year of their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of comparable students from the school district of comparison. (Using 2016-17 school district results.)	Did not meet
Growth	Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score proficient on their New York State 8 <sup>th</sup> grade mathematics exam will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.	Did not meet
Growth	Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score proficient on their New York State 8 <sup>th</sup> grade mathematics exam will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at least Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.	Exceeded

#### **ACTION PLAN**

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>28</sup> If the school includes a middle school component, add these measures to the subject area goal for the younger grades.

# **GOAL 5: SCIENCE**

## Goal 3: Science

Students will meet and exceed state standards for mastery of skills and content knowledge in the area of science.

#### **Goal 5: Absolute Measure**

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will perform at or above proficiency on the New York State science examination.

#### **METHOD**

The school administered the New York State Testing Program science assessment to students in  $4^{th}$  and  $8^{th}$  grade in spring 2018. The school converted each student's raw score to a performance level and a grade-specific scaled score. The criterion for success on this measure requires students enrolled in at least their second year to score at proficiency.

## **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the results of the 2017-18 State science exam.

# Charter School Performance on 2017-18 State Science Exam By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year

	Percent of Students at Proficiency					
Grade		ool Students it 2 <sup>nd</sup> Year	All District Students			
	Percent Number		Percent	Number		
	Proficient	Tested	Proficient	Tested		
4	80.4%	46	82.6%	876		
8	80.0% 45		46.2%	760		
All	80.2%	91	65.7%	1636		

Harlem Village Academy East exceeded the measure.

## ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE

The table below shows the results on the New York State science exam for 2015-16, 2016-17, and 2017-18.

## Science Performance by Grade Level and School Year

	Percent o	Percent of Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year at					
			Profic	ciency			
Grade	2015-16		201	2016-17		2017-18	
	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	
	Proficient	Tested	reiteiit	Tested	Proficient	Tested	
4	-	-	97.0%	67	80.4%	46	
8	70.5%	44	54.9%	51	80.0%	45	
All	70.5%	44	78.8%	118	80.2%	91	

## **Goal 5: Comparative Measure**

Each year, the percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year and performing at proficiency on the state science exam will be greater than that of all students in the same tested grades in the school district of comparison.

#### **METHOD**

The school compares tested students enrolled in at least their second year to all tested students in the public school district of comparison. Comparisons are between the results for each grade in which the school had tested students in at least their second year and the results for the respective grades in the school district of comparison. Given the timing of the state's release of district science data, the 2017-18 comparative data is not yet available. Schools should report comparison to the district's 2016-17 data.

## **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the results of the 2017-18 state Science exam for Harlem Village Academy East and the results of the 2016-17 state Science exam for Community School District 4.

# 2017-18 State Science Exam Charter School and District Performance by Grade Level

	Percent of Students at Proficiency						
Grade		ool Students st 2 <sup>nd</sup> Year	All District Students <sup>29</sup>				
	Percent	Number	Percent	Number			
	Proficient	Tested	Proficient	Tested			
4	80.4%	46	86.1%	950			
8	80.0%	45	43.6%	824			
All	80.2%	91	66.3%	1774			

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>29</sup> This table uses the prior year's results as 2017-18 district science scores are not yet available.

## ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE

The table below shows the results of the state Science exam for Harlem Village Academy East and Community School District 4 for 2015-16, 2016-17, and 2017-18.

Science Performance of Charter School and Local District by Grade Level and School Year						
	Percent of C			roficiency and to Local Distric		t Least their
Grade	201.	5-16	201	6-17	2017-18	
	Charter School	District	Charter School	District	Charter School	District
4	-	-	97.0%	86.1%	80.4%	82.6%
8	70.5%	48.5%	54.9%	43.6%	80.0%	46.2%
All	70.5%	48.5%	78.8%	66.3%	80.2%	65.7%

## SUMMARY OF THE SCIENCE GOAL

Harlem Village Academy East achieved both science goals.

Туре	Measure	Outcome
Absolute	Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will perform at or above proficiency on the New York State examination.	Exceeded
Comparative	Each year, the percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year and performing at proficiency on the state exam will be greater than that of all students in the same tested grades in the school district of comparison.	Exceeded

## **ACTION PLAN**

## HIGH SCHOOL SCIENCE

#### **Goal 5: Absolute Measure**

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on a New York State Regents science exam by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.

#### **METHOD**

New York State schools administer multiple high school science assessments; current Regent exams are Living Environment, Earth Science, Chemistry and Physics. The school administered Living Environment, Earth Science, and Chemistry. It scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100; students must score at least 65 to pass. This measure requires students in each Accountability Cohort to pass any one of the Regents science exams by their fourth year in the cohort. Students may have taken a particular Regents science exam multiple times or have taken multiple science exams. Students have until the summer of their fourth year to pass a science exam.

## **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort that have passed a science Regents exam with a score of 65 or higher by their fourth year in the cohort.

# Science Regents Passing Rate with a Score of 65 by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort<sup>30</sup>

Cohort Designation	Number in Cohort	Percent Passing with a score of 65
2012	42	100.0%
2013	49	95.9%
2014	58	100.0%

Harlem Village Academy East exceeded the measure.

## **ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE**

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort that have passed a science Regents exam with a score of 65 or higher.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>30</sup> Based on the highest score for each student on any science Regents exam

Science Regents Passing Rate with a score of 65 by Cohort and Year

Cohort	2015	5-16	2016-17		2017-18	
Designation	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
Designation	in Cohort	Passing	in Cohort	Passing	in Cohort	Passing
2014	64	1	62	83.9%	58	100.0%
2015	55	-	52	7.7%	49	85.7%
2016			28	82.1%	26	88.5%
2017					41	58.5%

## **Goal 5: Comparative Measure**

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort passing a Regents science exam with a score of 65 or above will exceed that of the high school Total Cohort from the school district of comparison.

#### **METHOD**

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school high school Total Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of comparison. Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth year, the school presents most recently available district results.

#### RESULTS AND EVALUATION

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort that have passed a science Regents exam with a score of 65 or higher for Harlem Village Academy East and Community School District 4. Cohort size and percent passing for Community School District 4 for 2017-18 had not been released at the time this report was completed. The district's 2016-17 percent passing is shown below for 2014 cohort comparison.

Science Regents Passing Rate of the High School Total Cohort by Charter School and School District

	Charter	School	School District		
Cohort	Percent	Cohort	Percent	Cohort	
	Passing	Size	Passing	Size	
2012	100.0%	42	84.3%	928	
2013	95.9%	49	86.6%	973	
2014	100.0%	58	N/A	N/A	

## SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL SCIENCE GOAL

Harlem Village Academy East achieved both high school science goals.

Туре	Measure	Outcome
	Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school	
Absolute	Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on a New York	Exceeded
Absolute	State Regents science exam by the completion of their fourth	Exceeded
	year in the cohort.	
	Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total	
Compositivo	Cohort passing a Regents science exam with a score of 65 or	Exceeded
Comparative	above will exceed that of the high school Total Cohort from	Exceeded
	the school district of comparison.	

## **ACTION PLAN**

# **GOAL 6: SOCIAL STUDIES**

#### **Goal 6: Social Studies**

Students will meet and exceed state standards for mastery of skills and content knowledge in the area of social studies.

#### **Goal 6: Absolute Measure**

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on the New York State Regents U.S. History exam by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.

#### **METHOD**

New York State administers two high school social studies assessments: U.S. History and Global History. In order to graduate, students must pass both of these Regents exams with a score of 65 or higher. This measure requires students in each Accountability Cohort to pass the two exams by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. Students may have taken the exams multiple times and have until the summer of their fourth year to pass it. Once students pass it, performance on subsequent administrations of the same exam do not affect their status as passing.

#### **RESULTS**

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort that have passed the U.S. History Regents exam with a score of 65 or higher by their fourth year in the cohort.

U.S. History Regents Passing Rate with a Score of 65 by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort<sup>31</sup>

Cohort Designation	Number in Cohort	Percent Passing with a score of 65
2012	42	100.0%
2013	49	93.9%
2014	58	86.2%

## **EVALUATION**

Harlem Village Academy East exceeded the measure.

## ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort that have passed the U.S. History Regents exam with a score of 65 or higher.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>31</sup> Based on the highest score for each student on a science Regents exam

U.S. History Regents Passing Rate with a score of 65 by Cohort and Year

Cohort	2015	5-16	2016-17		2017-18	
Designation	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
Designation	in Cohort	Passing	in Cohort	Passing	in Cohort	Passing
2014	64	-	62	56.5%	58	86.2%
2015	55	-	52	-	49	73.5%
2016			28	-	26	-
2017					41	-

#### **Goal 6: Comparative Measure**

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort passing the Regents U.S. History exam with a score of 65 or above will exceed that of the high school Total Cohort from the school district of comparison.

## **METHOD**

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school high school Total Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of comparison. Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth year, school presents the most recently available district results.

#### **RESULTS**

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort that have passed the U.S. History Regents exam with a score of 65 or higher for Harlem Village Academy East and Community School District 4. Cohort size and percent passing for Community School District 4 for 2017-18 had not been released at the time this report was completed. The district's 2016-17 percent passing is shown below for 2014 cohort comparison.

U.S. History Passing Rate of the High School Total Cohort by Charter School and School District

	Charter	School	School District	
Cohort	Percent	Cohort	Percent	Cohort
	Passing	Size	Passing	Size
2012	100.0%	42	78.4%	928
2013	93.9%	49	82.8%	973
2014	86.2%	58	N/A	N/A

## **EVALUATION**

#### **Goal 6: Absolute Measure**

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on the New York State Regents Global History exam by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.

#### **MFTHOD**

This measure requires students in each Accountability Cohort to pass the Global History exam by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. Students may have taken the exam multiple times, and had until the summer of their fourth year to pass it. Once students pass it, performance on subsequent administrations of the same exam do not affect their status as passing.

#### **RESULTS**

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort that have passed the Global History Regents exam with a score of 65 or higher by their fourth year in the cohort.

# Global History Regents Passing Rate with a Score of 65 by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort<sup>32</sup>

Cohort Designation	Number in Cohort	Percent Passing with a score of 65
2012	42	100.0%
2013	49	91.8%
2014	58	87.9%

#### **EVALUATION**

Harlem Village Academy East exceeded the measure.

## **ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE**

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort that have passed the Global History Regents exam with a score of 65 or higher.

Global History Regents Passing Rate with a score of 65 by Cohort and Year

Cohort	2015	5-16	2016-17		2017-18	
Designation	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
Designation	in Cohort	Passing	in Cohort	Passing	in Cohort	Passing
2014	64	67.2%	62	82.3%	58	87.9%
2015	55	ı	52	51.9%	49	75.5%
2016			28	1	26	65.4%
2017					41	-

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>32</sup> Based on the highest score for each student on a science Regents exam

## **Goal 6: Comparative Measure**

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort passing the Regents Global History exam with a score of 65 or above will exceed that of the high school Total Cohort from the school district of comparison.

#### **METHOD**

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school high school Total Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of comparison. Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth year, the school presents most recently available district results.

#### **RESULTS**

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort that have passed the Global History Regents exam with a score of 65 or higher for Harlem Village Academy East and Community School District 4. Cohort size and percent passing for Community School District 4 for 2017-18 had not been released at the time this report was completed. The district's 2016-17 percent passing is shown below for 2014 cohort comparison.

Global History Passing Rate
of the High School Total Cohort by Charter School and School District

	Charter	School	School District	
Cohort	Percent	Number	Percent	Number
	Passing	in Cohort	Passing	in Cohort
2012	100.0%	42	78.7%	928
2013	91.8%	49	80.8%	973
2014	87.9%	58	N/A	N/A

#### **EVALUATION**

## SUMMARY OF THE SOCIAL STUDIES GOAL

Harlem Village Academy East achieved all four of the Social Studies goals.

Type	Measure	Outcome
Absolute	Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on the New York State Regents U.S. History exam by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.	Exceeded
Comparative	Each year, the percent to students in the high school Total Cohort passing the Regents U.S. History exam with a score of 65 or above will exceed that of the high school Total Cohort from the school district of comparison.	Exceeded
Absolute	Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on the New York State Regents Global History exam by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.	Exceeded
Comparative	Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort passing the Regents Global History exam with a score of 65 or above will exceed that of the high school Total Cohort from the school district of comparison.	Exceeded

## **ACTION PLAN**

## GOAL 7: ESSA

# Goal 7: ESSA

Students at Harlem Village Academy East will meet and exceed state standards in all areas required by the ESSA accountability guidelines.

#### **Goal 7: Absolute Measure**

Under the state's ESSA accountability system, the school is in good standing: the state has not identified the school for comprehensive or targeted improvement.

#### **METHOD**

Because *all* students are expected to meet the state's performance standards, the federal statute stipulates that various sub-populations and demographic categories of students among all tested students must meet the state standard in and of themselves aside from the overall school results. As New York State, like all states, is required to establish a specific system for making these determinations for its public schools, charter schools do not have latitude in establishing their own performance levels or criteria of success for meeting the ESSA accountability requirements. Each year, the state issues School Report Cards that indicate a school's status under the state accountability system.

## **RESULTS AND EVALUATION**

Harlem Village Academy East is in "Good Standing" for the 2017-18 school year.

Harlem Village Academy East met the measure.

## ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE

The table below shows the school's accountability status for 2015-16, 2016-17, and 2017-18.

#### Accountability Status by Year

Year	Status
2015-16	Good Standing
2016-17	Good Standing
2017-18	Good Standing

---